
COUNCIL

BULLETIN
Issue Number 16/2019
Friday, 26 April 2019

Compiled, designed and produced by 
Customer Services Directorate - Governance

Contact: Kim Partridge 
Telephone: 01992 564443



2

PART A - FORWARD DIARY

Key to abbreviations:
 

CC      Council Chamber Cab Off Cabinet Office 

CR1     Committee Room 1 CONF Conference Room 
(1st floor)

CR2     Committee Room 2 CH OFF Chairman of Council’s 
Office

MR Members’ Room TR RM Training Room

TBD To be decided HEM Hemnall Street 
Offices.

TBN     To be noted HH Homefield House

TBC  To be confirmed ESC Epping Sports Centre

Other venues are shown in full.



3

Week One:  29 April 2019 – 5 May 2019

Monday 
29 April

Tuesday
30 April

Wednesday 
1 May

Thursday 
2 May Elections

Friday 
3 May

Saturday 
4 May

Sunday 
5 May

Week Two:  6 May 2019 – 12 May 2019

Monday 
6 May

Tuesday
7 May 10.00am Licensing Sub-Committee CC

Wednesday 
8 May

5.00pm

6.30pm
7.30pm

New and Re-elected Member Welcome and 
Induction
Briefing – Area Plans Sub-Committee East
Area Planning Sub-Committee East

CR1

CR1
CC

Thursday 
9 May 7.00pm Appointments Panel CR1

Friday 
10 May

9.30am
11.15am
1.30pm
3.00pm

Member Training – How the Council Works
Member Training – Code of Conduct
Member Training – Data Protection
Member Training - Planning

CR1
CR1
CR1
CR1

Saturday 
11 May

Sunday 
12 May



4

Week Three:  13 May 2019 – 19 May 2019

Monday 
13 May

Tuesday
14 May 7.00pm Epping Forest Youth Council CC

Wednesday 
15 May

6.30pm
7.30pm

Briefing – Area Plans Sub-Committee West
Area Planning Sub-Committee West

CR1
CC

Thursday 
16 May

Friday 
17 May

Saturday 
18 May

Sunday 
19 May

Week Four:  20 May 2019 – 26 May 2019

Monday 
20 May 7.30pm Council CC

Tuesday
21 May

Wednesday 
22 May

Thursday 
23 May

Friday 
24 May

Saturday 
25 May

Sunday 
26 May



5

PART B - ESSENTIAL INFORMATION

Committee Management System

The members’ extranet facility for the Modern.Gov system is available at:

https://eppingforestextranet.moderngov.co.uk/extranet

Members may wish to save this link on their computer or mobile devices. Queries 
concerning login and password details for the extranet should be addressed to the 
Democratic Services Manager.

Constitution

The Council’s Constitution is available at:

https://rds.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=638&Info=1

Queries concerning the Constitution should be addressed to the Democratic 
Services Manager

https://eppingforestextranet.moderngov.co.uk/extranet
mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
https://rds.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=638&Info=1
mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


6

PART C - GENERAL INFORMATION

1. UPDATED CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2019/20  (Pages 11 - 12)

Please note that the Calendar of meetings agreed at the Council on 21 
February 2019 has now been updated (copy attached), following the 
conclusion of the Task and Finish Panel report considering the Overview 
and Scrutiny Select Committee Framework. The Select Committees have 
now been agreed as Stronger Communities, Stronger Council and 
Stronger Place and date for these meetings have been updated in the 
calendar.

(Further information - Rebecca Perrin ext 4532)

2. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 16 APRIL 2019  (Pages 13 - 40)

Following the consideration of the O&S Committee Annual Report, the 
questions and answers put to the County Councillor for Education, Skills 
and Passenger Transport at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 4 
June 2019 were requested again for Members information. (Please see 
attachment)

(Further information - Rebecca Perrin ext 4532)

3. NEPP JOINT COMMITTEE MINUTES AND NOTICE OF DECISION  (Pages 41 - 
48)

Please see attached.

4. CIVIC OFFICES CAR PARK  (Pages 49 - 54)

Please see attached.

5. CHAIRMAN'S DIARY  (Pages 55 - 56)

Please see attached.



7

LICENSING ACT 2003

None this week



8

PLANNING

1. Appeals Lodged
  
EPF/0999/18 – Flat the Firs, 191 High Road Chigwell, Essex IG7 5AS - Demolition of 
existing bungalow and erection of building to provide four flats – Written reps – 
Sukhdeep Jhooti ext. 4298

EPF/2040/18 – 69 Church Hill Loughton Essex IG1- 1QP - Demolition of the existing 
bungalow and replacement with a block of 10 apartments –– Written reps -Sukhi 
Dhadwar ext. 4597 

EPF/2128/18 – 1 Langridge Cottages Paynes Lane Nazeing Essex EN9 2EZ – 
Written reps – Natalie Price ext. 4718

EPF/3171/18 – Forest Bungalow Woodside North Weald – Householder appeal – 
Corey Isolda

2. Forthcoming Planning Inquiries/Hearings - 

None this week

3. Enforcement Appeals

None this week

4. Appeal Decisions

None this week 

5. Tree Preservation Orders

TPO/EPF/05/18 – Lords Bushes Court, 700 High Road, Buckhurst Hill – Confirmed 
16th April 2019

TPO/EPF/04/19 – 4 Willinghall Close, Waltham Abbey - Confirmed 16th April 2019

6. S106 Agreements

None this week

7. Changes to Planning Systems

None this week



9

PROPOSED PLANNING ENFORCEMENT ACTION

None this week

It is important to note, that when enforcement action has been authorised, this 
includes any subsequent action under Part VII of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, including a prosecution or an injunction.

Principal Planning Enforcement Officer Jerry Godden 01992 564498
Senior Enforcement Officer Clare Munday 01992 564114
Planning Enforcement Officers Sharon Hart 01992 564113

Jim Gordon 01992 564530
Zara Seelig  01992 564379
Mick Mooney 01992 564713

Compliance Officer Shannon Murphy 01992 564217



10

PART C - PORTFOLIO HOLDER DECISIONS

The notification of decisions taken by individual Portfolio Holders is no longer 
included in the Council Bulletin. 

All members of the Council receive automatic email notification of the publication of 
each individual Portfolio Holder decision and the call-in period for each decision 
commences immediately. Members wishing to call-in a decision should complete the 
attached call-in form and return it to Democratic Services before the expiry of five 
working days following the publication date of the decision. Members should refer to 
the Constitution (Article 6 - Overview and Scrutiny) for the rules of call-in.



Epping Forest District Council Calendar of Meetings 2019/20
2019 2020

Meeting May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May
Executive
Council 20th 30th 19th 5th 17th 25th 7th 21st
Cabinet 13th 11th 5th 24th 5th 6th 26th 23rd

FPM Cab Comm 20th 18th 26th 14th 23rd 19th
AM & ED Cab Comm 27th 10th 16th 2nd
Local Plan Cab Comm 1st 17th 30th 16th

Scrutiny
OS Committee 4th 16th 3rd 19th 28th 17th

Stronger Council 9th 8th 14th 14th
Stronger Places 25th 17th 10th 24th

Stronger Community 2nd 1st 21st 21st
Constitution Working Grp 24th 12th

Planning
District Development 5th 24th 18th 13th 22nd 18th 27th

Plans East 8th 12th 10th 7th 4th 2nd/30th 27th (11th)* 8th 5th 4th 1st/29th
Plans West 15th 19th 17th 14th 11th 9th 6th 4th 15th 12th 11th 8th 13th
Plans South 29th 3rd/31st 28th 25th 23rd 20th 18th 29th 26th 25th 22nd
Licensing

Licensing Committee 16th 1st
Licensing Sub-Comm 4th 2nd 6th 3rd 1st 5th 3rd 7th 4th 3rd 7th

Miscellaneous
Member Briefings
Audit & Governance 25th 23rd 25th 27th 23rd
Standards Committee 2nd 2nd
Joint Consultative Comm 17th 30th 20th 27th
Local Councils Liaision 16th 16th
Appointments Panel 9th-16th 14th
Dev Mgmt Chairmen 9th 5th
O&S Chairmen 12th 10th
Webcast meeting: 

Easter 2020 Fri 10-Apr-20 to Mon 13-Apr-20
District Council Elections Thu 7-May-2020
Provisional Date Only * for Plans East

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Essex County Council 
Cabinet Office 
County Hall 
Chelmsford 
Essex CM1 1QH 
 
 
Mr S Tautz 
Democratic Services Manager 
Epping Forest District Council 
Civic Offices 
High Street 
Epping 
Essex, CM16 4BZ              29 May 2018 
 
 
 
Dear Mr Tautz 
 
Passenger Transport – Local Bus Services 
 
Thank you for your letter of 24 April 2018 about bus services in the EFDC area the tone and 

content of which I have noted.  It is always difficult when a member of one Authority is 

summoned to appear before the scrutiny committee of another and whilst I would always be 

please to share information, the implication of an adversarial meeting is not conducive to 

that. 

Notwithstanding that, I regret that I will not be able to attend the scrutiny meeting to be held 

on the 4th June as unfortunately in moving the date it now clashes with other commitments I 

have on that day. However, I thought it would be useful to answer your specific questions 

ahead of the meeting and you will find this information attached.  

I also thought it would be useful if I set out some of the context. 

Around 85% of the bus network in Essex is operated commercially.  So routes, timetables, 

fares etc are set entirely by commercial operators.  The Traffic Commissioner is the 

regulator for registration of routes and for operator licensing.  ECC has no statutory 

regulatory role at all.  Therefore while we work in partnership with the operators, we have 

no role at all in the operation of the vast majority of the network. 

 

ECC does invest significantly in local bus routes in Essex.  Taxpayers support around 15% 

of the network at a cost to them of around £8m a year.  This is a significant investment.  

Most county councils provide around £2-£3m of local bus funding and some none at all.  

This is discretionary spend and ECC also support community transport schemes across the 

county at a taxpayer cost of around £1m. 

There are also two significant statutory budgets.  Concessionary travel for older people and 

those with a disability is supported across Essex at a taxpayer cost of around £18m.  Home 

to school travel for entitled children is provided at a taxpayer cost of around £23m. 

 

 
Page 13

Agenda Item 2



 2 

Travel by bus has declined slowly nationally and in Essex – although more slowly and less 

severely in Essex.  Essex is a challenging environment in which to run services, because of 

its geographic scale and its largely rural nature.  Delivering bus services cost effectively 

remains an ongoing challenge.  We are currently refreshing our strategy for supporting as 

wide a network as possible across Essex in challenging financial circumstances.  This 

includes working closely with commercial operators and looking at the specific issues in 

localities. 

 

We recognise that communities value their bus services.  But we rely on people using 

services to make them sustainable.  Without usage, commercial services are withdrawn 

and for supported services the cost to the taxpayer becomes prohibitive.  We need more 

people using our bus network to ensure it will continue and hopefully thrive.  This is the 

fundamental issue we face.  If more people used the network we would not see the 

reductions in service that we have seen in some areas. 

To increase bus patronage we need the partnership and support of many partners, 

including district councils.  District councils have a particularly important role to play in the 

following areas: 

  through their role in planning, ensuring that bus options are considered at an early 

stage in developments and that associated funding such as S106 is used to support 

sustainable long term outcomes; 

  through their role in providing and pricing off-street parking provision, ensuring that 

capacity and cost support more sustainable travel options; 

  engagement with business, ensuring local business understand the value that bus 

passengers bring to the local economy and are supportive of bus travel;  

  engagement with local communities, ensuring that the local community are 

supporting their bus services routinely, not just when low usage raises the possibility 

of withdrawals. 

 

I look forward to hearing your views on these opportunities. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Cllr Ray Gooding 
Cabinet Member for Education and Skills 
and Passenger Transport 
 

 

Page 14



EFDC SCRUTINY QUESTIONS 

Q1: The total budget of Essex County Council for the support of local bus service 
across Essex and the amount currently allocated to the support of services operating 
within the Epping Forest District or serving its residents.  

A1: The total bus budget is £8.3m.  Epping Forest contracted services alone cost 
£722,542.77.  Epping Forest Community Transport scheme receive £70,645.10 from 
a Community Transport budget of around £1.1m. 
 

Q2: The level of contracted local bus service provision by the County Council, 
currently operating within the Epping Forest District or serving its residents and 
details of such routes).  

A2: The attached lists all ECC supported services in the Epping Forest area 

 

Q3: The level of otherwise financially supported local bus service provision by Essex 
County Council, currently operating within the Epping Forest District or serving its 
residents (and details of such routes.) 

A3: All supported local bus routes are included in the answer above. 

 

Q4: The amount of the total budget of the County Council for the support of local bus 
services across Essex, that is spent on concessionary travel and bus passes etc. 

A4: The total concessionary fares budget was £18.2m last year, and is the same for 
this year.  

 

Q5: The plans of the County Council for future changes to local bus services that 
operate within the Epping Forest District or serve its residents.   
 

A5: Most supported local bus services are under contract until 2020 and we will 
review those and consult on any changes next year.  Contracts for evening and 
Sunday services are due to expire in March 2019. We will consult on the future of 
these services in due course. Of these services only three contracted services in the 
EFDC area are affected.  We have no control over changes to bus services that are 
operated by commercial bus operators.   

 

Page 15



Q6: The financial or other constraints faced by the County Council that affect its 
support of local bus service provision. 
 

A6: Like all local authorities ECC comes under increasing financial pressure from a 
reducing revenue support grant and increasing demand for its statutory services, like 
adult social care.  Spend on local bus is discretionary – there is no statutory 
requirement.  ECC is, of course, required to prioritise its statutory budgets, hence 
there will always be significant pressure on discretionary spend.  There are 
additionally ongoing pressures from changes made to the commercial network as 
operators seek to continue to run services commercially against a decline in 
patronage overall.  There is also a complex legislative framework in which services 
are delivered.  For example, the Department for Transport has just carried out a 
consultation regarding the use of S19/S22 permits which could have significant 
impacts on our Community Transport schemes and the services they deliver.  

 

Q7: The County Councils future funding arrangements for the support of local bus 
services that operate within the Epping Forest District or serve its residents.  
 

A7: The timetable for the end of contracts and the preceding review and consultation 
process for supported services is set out above.   

 

Q8: The cost to the County Council of a single older persons bus pass.   
 

A8: The cost of the concessionary pass is commercially confidential.  It can be 
shared in confidence with the scrutiny panel if they so wish. 
 

Q9: The arrangements of the County Council for modelling of need for the provision 
of local bus services across the County.  
 

A9: ECC regularly review the network.  The last reviews were in 2015 and 2016 to 
advise those tender rounds.  A range of criteria are taken into account, including 
demographic information, access to services, alternative travel options, value for 
money, passenger journey data and affordability. 

 

Q10: The value for money derived from local bus services that are contracted or 
financially supported by Essex County Council.  

Page 16



A10: ECC has a long standing taxpayer value for money test of £5 per passenger 
journey.  This means that where the cost of a supported service to the taxpayer is 
over £5 per passenger journey there is a consultation on the withdrawal of that 
service.  In broader value terms, the value of the supported bus network is estimated 
by DfT in 2016 as providing £2.50 of economic, social and environmental benefit for 
every £1 invested.  That means for an investment of £8.3m in supported local bus 
the return is over £20m in benefits. 

Q11: The arrangements of the County Council for the promotion of local bus 
services as a more sustainable alternative to other forms of vehicular transport. 

A11: ECC’s Sustainable Travel team work with schools, employers, developers and 
other stakeholders to promote more sustainable means of travel. Details of this can 
be found within their Sustainable Modes of Travel Strategy. Working alongside other 
departments within the organisation, and contributing towards supporting the 
commercial network through measures such as improved bus infrastructure; 
improved digital information – for example real-time and bus tracking; and securing 
S106 investment to kick-start commercial services in new developments. 

Q12: The general standards expected by the County Council of contracted or 
financially supported services, in terms of the reliability, roadworthiness and 
cleanliness of operational vehicles. 

A12: Statutory punctuality and roadworthiness requirements are set by the Traffic 
Commissioner as part of the operator licensing regime.  ECC sets vehicle standards 
for its own contracts.  These, and punctuality, are measured through the contractual 
KPI’s.  The attached document is an extract from Local Bus terms and conditions of 
contract. 

Q13: The requirement of the County Council for the provision of seat belts on 
contracted local school transport services.   

A13: The long standing position of ECC is to require operators to provide seatbelts 
in accordance with the legal requirements. Contracts state:  

 

 

 

Page 17

http://www.essex.gov.uk/Environment%20Planning/Development-in-Essex/Documents/Sustainable_Modes_of_Travel_Strategy.pdf


Q14: The arrangements of the County Council for the identification of new bus 
service routes (i.e. does the County Council determine where a service is need and 
go out to tender or do operators propose routes to the County Council).   
 

A14: The majority of services are provided by the commercial network and operators 
will make decisions on new routes based on their assessment of commercial 
viability.  ECC assess new demand at the review and consultation point for 
supported services.  Additionally ECC look to identify areas of new development 
where S106 funding might be used to support the development of a commercial 
service.   

Q15: The effectiveness of the County Councils Bus Strategy and associated Priority 
Policy. 
 

A15: The Bus Strategy was adopted in 2015 with a view that it set 5-7 year goals.  
Under it we have seen a range of service improvements, including: 

• The full roll out of bus real-time information; 
• The full review and re-design of the supported bus network; 
• Commercialisation of a significant number of services; 
• The introduction of the Broomfield Hospital shuttle from Chelmer Valley Park 

and Ride; 
• The additional hospital stop for Colchester Park and Ride; 
• The extension of demand responsive services offering significantly higher 

levels of service in rural areas; 
• The first multi-operator digital ticket; 
• Digital ticketing on Park and Ride services; 
• A more strategic partnership with bus operators through the bus board; 
• Improved bus infrastructure; 
• Longer contracts with more incentive for passenger growth;  
• A pilot for digital demand responsive transport. 

 

The Bus Priority Policy has enabled us to understand the relative priority of services 
to passengers and the public and ensure that our funding is focused on those that 
represent people’s top priorities. 

 

Q16: The criteria applied by the County Council for the grant of a licence to an 
operator for the operation of a specific bus route.  

Page 18



A16: ECC does not grant licences to bus operators or register routes.  These are 
matters for the Traffic Commissioner’s Office. ECC do not have any authority over 
the issue of a licence or registration of a route. 

 

Q17: The criteria applied by the County Council for the withdrawal of financial 
support for the operation of a specific bus service and route.  
 

A17: The current criterion is that any service that exceeds a taxpayer subsidy of 
£5.00 per individual passenger journey is reviewed, usually at tender stage. If a 
service exceeds this upper limit, and no way can be found to bring the service below 
that level of subsidy, for example through reduced frequency or smaller vehicles, the 
service is subject to consultation for withdrawal. 

Page 19



Page 20



Service 

number

Days of operation Supporte

d 

Journeys

Origin Destination Operator

21 Saturday Ongar Brentwood Ensign Bus Co Ltd

804 Schooldays Debden Chigwell London General Transport 

87 Monday to Saturday Debden Loughton Swallow Coach Co Ltd

32 Monday to Saturday Chelmsford Ongar First Essex Ltd

211/212 Monday to Saturday Waltham Cross Breach Barns/Roundhills Community Link

13 (previously 213)Monday to Saturday Waltham Cross Bus Station

St Margaret's Hospital 

Epping Swallow Coach Co Ltd

418B Monday to Saturday evenings Loughton Harlow Galleon Travel 2009 Ltd

418B

Sunday & Public 

Holidays Loughton Harlow Arriva Kent & Thameside Ltd

SB10/11/13 Monday & Thursday

Moreton/Matching 

Green/Stanford Rivers Epping Community Link

66 a/b (previously 240/250)

Sunday & Public 

Holidays Waltham Cross Debden/Upshire Swallow Coach Co Ltd

418 Monday to Saturday Loughton Harlow Galleon Travel 2009 Ltd

381 Monday to Saturday Toot Hill Harlow Community Link

SB12 Wednesday & Friday Toot Hill Harlow Community Link

420

Sunday & Public 

Holidays Ongar Harlow Galleon Travel 2009 Ltd

46 Monday to Saturday Chelmsford / Epping Ongar First Essex Ltd

P
age 21



P
age 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



NOTICE OF DECISIONS 
 

DRAFT MINUTES OF THE MEETING  

21 March 2019 
 

The North Essex Parking Partnership 

Joint Committee for On-Street Parking 
 

Braintree District Council 

Colchester Borough Council 

Epping Forest District Council 

Essex County Council 

Harlow District Council 

Tendring District Council 

Uttlesford District Council 

 
Notification of the decision(s) taken (DRAFT minutes) was 
given to Client Officers from all Parking Partnership 
Councils on 8 April 2019.  District Council Members should 
be notified of the decision(s) taken by 9am on 9 April 2019. 
 
The decision notice for this decision(s) will be published at 
County Hall and a request for call-in must be made between 
9am Tuesday 9 April 2019 and 5pm Thursday 11 April 2019. 
 
The decision(s) may be implemented from 5pm Thursday 
11 April 2019, unless ‘called in’. 

  
Please note the scrutiny of a decision taken by the North Essex 
Parking Partnership is undertaken by Essex County Council’s 
Place, Services and Economic Growth Committee.  
 
A request for a decision to be scrutinised may be made by: 
 
(a) Any Member of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee; 
(b) Any Member of the Council who has the support of a further 

three Members of the Council; or 
(c) With the agreement of the chairman of the relevant Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee, any Member of the Council who 
represents a Division which is particularly affected by the 
decision in question.  Page 41

Agenda Item 3



 
A decision is called-in if during the period stated in the notice 
of decisions [on the expiry of three clear working days after 
publication] a valid written call-in notice is received which 
specifies the reasons for the call-in. 
 
The Chairman and Members of the Place, Services and 
Economic Growth Committee can be found on the Essex 
County Council website, or here.  
 
The call-in procedure shall not apply where the decision or 
action taken by the Joint Committee is certified by the Joint 
Committee as urgent. 

 

Page 42

http://cmis.essexcc.gov.uk/essexcmis5/Committees/tabid/94/ctl/ViewCMIS_CommitteeDetails/mid/483/id/129/Default.aspx


NORTH ESSEX PARKING PARTNERSHIP 
JOINT COMMITTEE FOR ON-STREET PARKING 

 

21 March 2019 at 1.00pm 

Civic Centre, The Water Gardens, College Square, Harlow 

 
Members Present:    
 
Councillor Robert Mitchell (Essex County Council) (Chairman) 
Councillor Richard Van Dulken (Braintree District Council)   
Councillor Mike Lilley (Colchester Borough Council) 
Councillor Nigel Avery (Epping Forest District Council) 
Councillor Danny Purton (Harlow District Council) 
Councillor Howard Ryles (Uttlesford District Council) 
    
 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Fred Nicholls (Tendring District Council) 
 
 
Also Present:  
 
Liz Burr (Essex County Council) 
Samir Pandya (Braintree District Council) 
Qasim Durrani (Epping Forest District Council) 
Miroslav Sihelsky (Harlow Council) 
Ian Taylor (Tendring District Council) 
Simon Jackson (Uttlesford District Council) 
Richard Clifford (Colchester Borough Council) 
Jake England (Parking Partnership) 
Lisa Hinman (Parking Partnership) 
Michael Adamson (Parking Partnership) 
Paul Seabright (Parking Partnership) 
Richard Walker (Parking Partnership) 
Trevor Degville (Parking Partnership) 
  
29.  Declaration of Interest 
 
Councillor Mitchell, Essex County Council, declared a non-pecuniary interest, in 
respect of his membership of Braintree District Council.  
 
30.  Minutes  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2018 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 
31.  Have Your Say!  
 

Page 43



Ruth Bartlett, Pear Tree Mead Academy, addressed the Joint Committee about road 
safety issues at Pear Tree Academy.  The Academy had an entrance on Trotters 
Road, where there were no parking restrictions. Trotters Road was also a bus route.  
Parents were parking in an irresponsible manner, including parking on the pavement, 
which was unsafe and causing a road safety issue for pupils.  School staff did patrol 
and ask parents not to park but had no powers to prevent or enforce this, and help 
was requested from the Parking Partnership in resolving this situation. 
 
Councillor Purton expressed his support for the request as he had witnessed 
inconsiderate and selfish parking on Trotters Road and he believed there was a child 
safety issue.  Whilst there maybe a need for the imposition of parking restrictions, 
this would not stop parents stopping to drop off children and he considered that there 
was a need for some infrastructure to be put in place to prevent cars mounting the 
pavement and this should be taken forward with the Local Highway Panel. 
 
Councillor Mitchell explained that this might situation might be addressed under the 
3PR scheme, or by the introduction of yellow School Keep Clear zig zags on Trotters 
Road. Whilst he noted the suggestion for the introduction of physical barriers, these 
were frequently damaged with a cost to repair and could also interfere with 
emergency access. He requested that Parking Partnership officers contact Ruth with 
the details of the 3PR scheme and the application process for parking restrictions 
and yellow zig zags.   
 
32. Parking Management Policy Update Report 
 
Richard Walker, Parking Partnership Group Manager, introduced the report on the 
Parking Management Policy Update report.  He explained that this followed on from 
the decision at the last Joint Committee meeting to make the Partnership’s policies 
clearer and more accessible.  The text of the Parking Management Policy had been 
updated and simplified, using clear and plain English. However, the policy had not 
changed in substance.  It was proposed to publish the updated policy on the Parking 
Partnership’s website. 
 
Councillor Mitchell welcomed the updated Parking Management Policy.  It 
recognised innovation and modernisation. It was important to raise public awareness 
of the Partnership’s work and the scope of its agenda.  The move towards making 
policies clear and accessible through digital means was to be welcomed   He 
considered that it would be useful to invite the public with a means to provide 
comments about the policy on the website. 
 
RESOLVED that the revised Parking Management Policy with improved design be 
noted. 
 
33. Reserve Fund Process Report 
 
Richard Walker, Parking Partnership Group Manager, introduced a report inviting the 
Joint Committee to agree a process for the allocation of funds for transport related 
projects.  Following the decision at the last Joint Committee meeting on 13 
December 2018 that partners be invited to submit schemes relating to parking for 
future funding from the Reserve Fund, the report proposed a process for allocating 

Page 44



funds to projects put forward by the partners and processing projects against funding 
in the future programme. 
 
Parallels were drawn with the scoring system developed for Traffic Regulation 
Orders, which had been improved over time and now worked well.  It was suggested 
it was important that the scoring system encouraged the funding of projects that 
related directly to parking or helped alleviate the impact on those affected by parking 
issues.  Emphasis was given to the particular value in funding innovative 
technological projects through the Reserve Fund. This would be a sound investment 
for the future and could lead to improvements with a wider benefit.  For example, 
there could be an opportunity to develop services based on artificial intelligence, or 
to better regulate blue badge usage. 
 
Confirmation was sought about a number of aspects of the scoring system proposed, 
such as the difference in the definitions for “funding stream replaced” and “makes a 
contribution to future project budgets”. Some concern was expressed about the high 
weighting that could be allocated to additional qualitative measures, which were 
subjective. However, it was stressed that this was a range and the maximum number 
of points for this criterion would not always be awarded.   
 
Some concern was expressed by members of the Committee that it would be difficult 
and time consuming to administer the process and that some of the criteria were 
very subjective. It needed to be borne in mind that the current Agreement was only 
due to last for a further three years. Therefore, the processes should prioritise 
smaller schemes that could be delivered quickly or which had match funding, 
possibly with an allocation to each authority. However, this might not provide value 
for money or meet strategic objectives. Whilst the argument for allocations for each 
authority was noted, this was not the general approach of the Partnership.  It 
delivered schemes where they were needed and according to strategic priorities 
instead of concentrating on an even spread across the partners.   
 
RESOLVED that the Framework Process set out in the report for allocating funds to 
projects put forward by the partners and processing projects against funding in the 
future programme be agreed (Three voted for, two voted against). 
 
Councillor Purton declared a non-pecuniary interest in the following item in 
respect of being a resident in a street adjacent to the Chase. 
 
34. Technical Report 
 
Trevor Degville, Parking Partnership Technical Manager, introduced a report inviting 
the Joint Committee to note the location of Traffic Regulation Orders installed in 
2018/19 and to consider the introduction of a traffic regulation order for waiting and 
loading restrictions on The Chase, Harlow, following public submissions of 
opposition and support. 
 
It was explained that, whilst most schemes are handled under delegated powers, 
where substantial objections were received to a proposed Traffic Regulation Order in 
the pursuance of transparency, the Parking Partnership Group Manager could 
request that the proposal be determined by the Joint Committee. A proposal to 

Page 45



introduce no waiting/no loading restrictions on The Chase was originally advertised 
in April 2018.  Following objections and other issues being raised Harlow District 
Council requested that an amended proposal be advertised.  This saw a reduction in 
the amount of carriageway that would be restricted and was advertised in November 
2018.  This had generated a number of objections. A summary of the objections 
received from members of the public and the letter of support from the Ambulance 
Service were included in the report to the Joint Committee, who were invited to 
determine the proposal.   
 
Councillor Purton explained some of the background that had led to the proposal for 
a Traffic Regulation Order.  Newhall had been a proposed development for 20,000 
dwellings but up until three years ago, only a quarter of the development had been 
built.  It was always intended that The Chase would be the main entrance to the 
development.  Houses on The Chase had been built with parking spaces for 2-3 cars 
to the rear. They were also subject a covenant which prevented parking on The 
Chase, but this had never been enforced.  Therefore, residents on The Chase had 
parked on the roadside. Now further development was proceeding, more traffic was 
using The Chase and parking on the roadside was impeding the flow of traffic. The 
frustration of residents with the introduction of restrictions was understood.  
However, there would still a section of roadway for use by residents and there was 
considerable parking space to the rear of houses on The Chase. The proposed 
traffic regulation order would significantly improve the flow of traffic. 
 
Members of the Joint Committee indicated their support for introduction of the Traffic 
Regulation Order. In particular the Joint Committee took account of the 
representations made by the Ambulance Service in support of the Order. It was 
noted that the Covenant preventing parking on The Chase could still be legally 
enforced. 
 
RESOLVED that: - 
 
(a) The Traffic Regulation Order for scheme 30777 be introduced and the 

Objectors informed of the outcome; 
 
(b) The Traffic Regulation Orders introduced during the 2018/19 financial year be 

noted; 
 
(c) The progress on the Commuter Parking Review be noted.  
 
35. Financial Report  
 
Richard Walker, Parking Partnership Group Manager, introduced a report setting out 
the financial position of the Parking Partnership to the end of period 10 2018-19.  It 
was reported that the Partnership was in a strong financial position.  Income was 
presently forecast to exceed expectations, helped by the good weather over winter 
(in particular, a lack of snow), and expenditure was also on budget.  It had been 
budgeted to take £250k out of the reserve to fund technical services which may not 
now be required, and £50k to fund 3PR schemes.   Even with those deductions, it 
was still anticipated that there would be a small operating surplus. 
 

Page 46



RESOLVED that the financial position to the end of period 10 of 2018/9 be noted. 
 
 
36.  Forward Plan 2018-19 and 2019-20 Dates 
 
Richard Clifford, Democratic Services Officer, introduced the Forward Plan for 2018-
19 and 2019-20.  
 
RESOLVED that the North Essex Parking Partnership Forward Plan 2018-19 and 
2019-20 be noted; 
 
 
 

 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Dear Councillor,

Following completion of the Civic Offices staff car parking survey back in February, 
the results have now been analysed. We are now in the position to give 60 extra 
members of staff access to our car parks at the Civic Offices site in Epping. 

This, alongside introduction of a new parking policy, is going to change the way we 
all use the car parks on the Epping site.

The 60 extra members of staff will have access from Wednesday 10 April 2019 and 
spaces will be available on a first come first served basis.

You may have already noticed that work has been done to maximise the potential 
use of our car parks. Blue and extra white parking bays have been drawn out. 

Alongside these changes, a new set of rules need to be adhered to by everyone 
using the council’s car parks. 

The new rules

1. Staff parking is prohibited anywhere other than a white or blue marked 
bay – your vehicle must be parked in a marked bay only, with all four wheels 
inside the space.

2. Do not park in a blue bay when a white one is available - spaces have 
been marked out to maximise the use of the car park, so please use the 
original white bays before you park in the blue bays.

3. Fill the blue parking bays in number order - park in the lowest numbered 
blue bay available This will ensure all bays are used.

4. Display your contact details - when blocking others in you must display your 
contact details on your dashboard and be available to move your car if you 
are contacted to do so. Visit our Superintendents for a display card.

5. Move your car in a timely manner – if you’ve been asked to move your car 
because you are double parked, do so with haste and no undue delay.

6. Only park in disabled bays if you have a blue badge or special 
permission – display your Blue Badge clearly on the dashboard. Exception 
will only be made with prior dispensation from the Superintendents. 

Disabled bays and those for the messenger need the correct permissions. 
However, the bays marked ‘leader’ for example, may be used if empty.

This is an overview, so please make yourself familiar with the new Staff Car Parking 
policy attached to this document.

Page 49

Agenda Item 4



Advice for Councillors

If you are attending the Council on official business and need to park in a pay and 
display car park, you can claim the cost back through the normal expense claim 
process.

Further information
 
If you require any further information please contact Qasim Durrani, Service Director 
on 01992 564055 or email qdurrani@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
 
This is an overview, so please make yourself familiar with the new Staff Car Parking 
policy below.

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

CIVIC OFFICES – STAFF CAR PARKING POLICY 

1. BACKGROUND AND REASON FOR POLICY

Without being under any obligation to do so the Council provides car parking space for 
staff at the Civic Offices site.

The number of staff based at the Civic Officers who come to work by car exceeds the 
parking spaces available.

Therefore, it is necessary to have a Car Park Management Policy with the following 
objectives:

1. Specify and operate a priority allocation system giving precedence to staff who 
have to use a vehicle as part of their job.

2. Identify areas where double parking is permitted and regulate how this 
operates.

3. Manage enforcement procedure when infringements occur.

2. CIVIC OFFICES SITE – DESCRIPTION

This Policy covers the following three staff car parks. 

Car park 1 - behind and under the main civic office building;
Car park 2 - those spaces around the rear extension; and
Car park 3 - the Paddock and the area behind the Black Lion public house. 

3. ALLOCATION AND MANAGEMENT POLICY

This allocation and management policy is managed by the Director of Business 
Support. The Policy will apply to permanent staff both full time and part time, if capacity 
exists then temporary staff may be allowed access.

Page 50

mailto:qdurrani@eppingforestdc.gov.uk


4. THE ALLOCATION CRITERIA:

First priority
 Essential users
 Staff Members with a disability or who require special assistance (a valid Disabled 

Badge must be displayed or dispensation agreed by Office Superintendent) 
 Staff with special responsibilities requiring the use of a vehicle

Second priority
 High mileage casual users doing more than 1000 business miles per annum.

Staff based at offices other than the Civic Offices in Epping will not be given 
access to the car parks unless: there is an operational need for service delivery, 
require special assistance, have special responsibilities involving the use of a 
vehicle, have a proven medical case supported by a doctor’s letter.

The previously issued circular yellow stickers are being withdrawn, any staff 
members who have these stickers on their vehicle windscreen are asked to 
remove them. There is no priority parking for cars with circular yellow stickers. 

5. DEFINITION OF INFRINGEMENT

The onus is on the driver to comply with this Policy and any infringement will 
result in enforcement action. 

Failure to comply with the following will result in car park access being taken 
away.

i. PROHIBITED AREAS

Staff parking is prohibited anywhere other than a marked bay coloured white or 
blue. The vehicle must be parked within a marked bay only. The outside of each 
tyre must be within the inside edge of the white lines depicting that parking bay. 

ii DOUBLE PARKING

Staff who have to double park shall do so only in a designated bay, marked in 
blue colour, parking wholly within the bay and must display on the dashboard a 
card bearing their extension number, mobile number if they are likely to be away 
from their desk, and promptly move their vehicle when requested to do so.

Where blue coloured bays are numbered staff must park in the lowest numbered 
bay first. This is to allow all the bays to be utilised. 

iii. FAILURE TO DISPLAY NAME AND PHONE NUMBER ON DASHBOARD OF 
VEHICLE

The driver must clearly display the correct card containing their name and phone 
number on the dashboard in full view so as to be seen from outside of the vehicle, 
before leaving the vehicle in the car park.

iv. FAILURE TO MOVE A VEHICLE IN A TIMELY MANNER WHEN ASKED TO 
DO SO

Page 51



The driver must be contactable on the phone number displayed on the dashboard and 
when requested to move their vehicle must do so in haste and without undue delay.

v. PARKED IN A BLUE COLOURED BAY WHEN THE WHITE COLOURED 
BAY IS EMPTY

The driver must ensure that all white coloured bays are used for parking the vehicle 
prior to using the blue coloured bays, thus not blocking in an empty bay. Where the 
bays are numbered, the lower number bays are to be used first. 

vi. PARKED IN A DISABLED BAY

The driver must ensure that, when parking the vehicle in a marked disabled bay, a 
valid Blue Badge is clearly displayed on the dashboard, the only exception will be if a 
prior dispensation is obtained from Office Superintendents. 

vii. FAILURE TO OBSERVE THAT MOTORCYLE BAYS ARE DESIGNATED 
FOR MOTORCYCLES ONLY

Only motorcycles are permitted to park in the designated motorcycle bays.

viii. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE INSTRUCTION(S) OF THE OFFICE 
SUPERINTENDENT

The driver is required to follow instructions, with regard to the infringements and 
policies contained within this document, of the Office Superintendent.

ix. PARKING A VEHICLE IN A RESTRICTED AREA IN EITHER CAR PARKS 1, 
2 OR 3

The onus is on the driver to ensure a vehicle is not parked within a restricted area in 
either of the 3 car parks.  An example of a restricted area is at the entrance/exit to the 
car parks, a hatched area, etc.

x. FAILURE TO OBSERVE THE CORRECT USE OF AN ACCESS CONTROL 
BADGE

A member of staff must not allow unauthorised access to any of the staff car parks by 
allowing a third party to use their access control badge.  This is misuse of the badge. 
Only the Office Superintendent is allowed to let anyone in.

xi. TO ABIDE BY THE CAR PARK RULES

The onus is on the driver to ensure they abide by the car park rules when parking their 
vehicle 

6. INFORMATION

Staff given access to the staff car parks must provide on request details of their car(s) 
make, colour and registration number. This will normally be obtained at the 
commencement of employment by the line manager. However, all subsequent 
changes of vehicle/additional vehicle used must be reported to the Office 
Superintendent.

Page 52



7. DUE CARE AND COOPERATION

The intention of this policy is to enable as many of the Civic Office based staff to park 
on site as is possible. All staff are asked to be considerate to the varying requirements 
of other colleagues and avoid the need for enforcement action.

Those staff members who are likely to not leave office all day are encouraged to park 
in bays where they can be blocked in.

If all staff adhere to the policy then enforcement action will be avoided. 

8. ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURE

Common sense approach to parking will enable maximum utilisation of car parking 
spaces.  However, failure to comply with the Staff Car Parking Policy will result in 
enforcement action being taken. 

Step 1 – in the first instance an email Warning Notice will be issued to the member of 
staff by the Business Support Team on behalf of the Office Superintendent

Step 2 – in the second instance a final email Warning Notice will be issued to the 
member of staff by the Business Support Team on behalf of the Office Superintendent.

Step 2 – any subsequent infringement will result in access to Civic Offices Car Parks 
being removed

Any one who disputes an enforcement action can appeal to the Business Support and 
ICT Manager who will review the appeal in consultation with the Director of Business 
Support

9. REGULATION OF POLICY
Regular checks will be carried out by the Office Superintendents.

Staff wishing to report infringements of the policy can do so in confidence by contacting 
the Office Superintendents, or their line manager to pass on to one of the above.  

10. WARNING NOTICE

The Business Support Team will issue Warning Notices on behalf of Office 
Superintendent and will keep a record of all infringements. The Warning Notices will 
be in the following written format and will be emailed to the member of staff.

Example:-

DATE TIME LOCATION VRN INFRINGEMENT
08.03.2019 10:30 Car Park 1 AB12CDE i

Staff Car Park Policy – v5 – 13.03.19 agreed by Leadership Team on 20 March 2019

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Chairman’s Events April 

Date Event Venue Attending

Sunday
28 April

National Scout Service 
& Parade Windsor Castle Chairman of Council

Sunday
5 May Ongar Town Festival High Street, Ongar Chairman of Council

Sunday
5 May

Mayor of Havering 
Garden Party Rainham Hall, Chairman of Council

Wednesday
8 May New Member Training Civic Offices

Wednesday
8 May

HM Royal Marines 
Band Collingwood 
Charity Concert

Cliffs Pavilion, Southend 
on Sea Chairman of Council

Sunday
19 May

Rotary East London 
Disability Games Ongar Leisure Centre Chairman of Council

Tuesday
21 May Royal Garden Party Buckingham Palace Chairman of Council

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

Notification of Call-In of Portfolio Holder Decision under Paragraphs 45-
52 of Article 6 (Overview & Scrutiny) of the Constitution

This form must be signed and completed and the original returned to the 
Proper Officer in person no later than the fifth working day following the 

publication of the decision to be called-in

Decision to be called-in:

Decision reference:

Portfolio:

Description of decision:

Reason for call-in

Members requesting call-in 
(3 members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or 5 other members)

Members Name: Signed:
Lead member:

Office Use Only: Date Received:

Page 57

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Updated Calendar of Meetings 2019/20
	2 Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 16 April 2019
	STautz - 29.05.18
	EFDC SCRUTINY QUESTIONS
	Copy of Contracts in Epping Forest
	extract from local bus terms and conditions
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	3 NEPP Joint Committee minutes and notice of decision
	FP-406-04-19 NEPP Draft Minutes 210319

	4 Civic Offices Car Park
	5 Chairman's Diary
	 Part C - Portfolio Holder Decisions



